
1 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA: Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 6:00 pm
PenMet Community Recreation Center (2416 14th Ave NW., Gig Harbor, WA 98335)

Call to Order ___: ___

Commissioner Roll Call:
Present Excused Comment

Maryellen (Missy) Hill
Amanda Babich
Laurel Kingsbury
Kurt Grimmer

Steve Nixon

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda

ITEM 2 Citizen Comments: Due to current circumstances, we will be excepting
citizen comments via email up until 5:00 PM Monday 16, 2020. Comments
will be read and recorded in the meeting.

ITEM 3 Presentations

3.a GCCM (General Contractor/Construction Manager) Process for
CRC Project

3.b Executive Director’s Report

3.c Finance Report

3.d President’s Report

ITEM 4 Consent Agenda

4.a Approval of Meeting Minutes

3-03-20 Study Session and Regular minutes

4.b Approval of Vouchers

$182,741.23 Reference Number: V2020-100-136

ITEM 5 Unfinished Business

5.a Board Meeting Update

5.b RFP for CRC Fundraising Campaign Consultant

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org

www.penmetparks.org



2 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

ITEM 6 New Business

6.a Re-zoning the CRC site to Parks and Recreation

ITEM 7 Comments by Board

ITEM 8 Next Board Meetings: Tues. April 8, 2020 (Study and Regular) at City Hall location

ITEM 9 Executive Session

ITEM 10 Adjournment ___: ___

AGENDA POLICY

 No comments or discussion will be allowed on consent items.
 Public comment will be allowed on each Regular Agenda Action Item. Each speaker will be

limited to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once with a total of 15 minutes per
side. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting.

 Citizen Comments: Citizens are afforded an opportunity at each regular and special meeting
of the Board of Park Commissioners to offer their comments to the Board. Citizens are limited
to a three (3) minute time limit and may only speak once during the Citizen Comment period
at each meeting. Comments will be included as part of the official record of the meeting.

 Individuals requesting an item to be placed on the agenda must submit a request by 12 noon
on the Tuesday preceding the Monday meeting date.

 Individuals wishing to submit materials or written testimony to the Board at the meeting must
provide ten (10) copies at least 15 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.



3 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT: 17, 2020

 I will provide an update on PenMet Parks operational procedures pertaining to the COVID – 19
coronavirus; including the formation of a task force to manage changing conditions

 Our Capital Project Team met with members of the Pierce County Permit staff to discuss
PenMet Park properties and zoning consideration

 I attended the quarterly Pierce County Professionals meeting on Friday, March 6th and received
valuable information regarding the coronavirus, legislative funding, WRPA conference,
networking, and park leadership practices.

 Met with members of our Capital Project Team and a local expert on design to build projects to
become better acquainted with the GC/CM process.

 I am meeting with Roxanne Miles, Pierce County Parks Director, next week to discuss funding
opportunities for PenMet Parks.

 I am looking to be more involved with the Greater Gig Harbor Chamber of Commerce; including
serving on the Public Affairs Forum committee.

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org
www.penmetparks.org



4 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT: February 4 - March 17, 2020

Marketing/Communications

 The Spring Parks and Recreation Guide has been completed and mailed out 14,000 copies to
residents in the 98335, 98333, 98332 zip codes.

 Spring Parks and Recreation Guide emailed to District email database.

 Promotion of upcoming events to include print and digital. Adult Egg Hunt, Spring Egg Hunt,
Adaptive Egg Hunt, Teen Egg Hunt, Scavenger Hunt Hike.

 Marketing facilitated interview with the Peninsula Gateway/TNT for the Spring Parks and
Recreation Guide featuring Youth Sports and the value of the program interviewed staff Spencer
Manjarrez.

 Marketing facilitated an interview with the Peninsula Gateway/TNT for the Adaptive Recreation
Program interviewed staff Denise Trembley.

 Finalized graphic design of District trailer for use at events.

 Monitoring and communicating status updates of COVID-19 regarding District response.

Capital

 RFQ Published 2/20 & 25. Responses due 4/3/20. Selection expected 4/21/20. Board approval of
contract anticipated for 5/5/20.

 GCCM process under review with presentation 3/17.

 CRC WIFI planning 2/24/20, estimate coming

 SHP Lighting: See Memo 200115

 Field lights installed and operational.

 Scheduling started 2/26/20

 Permits approved for SHP Lighting project.

 Negotiating with GPC over amphitheater parking lights reaching tentative agreement.

 Parking light poles arrived on site 2/20/20

 Turf half installed, amphitheater half in progress.

 HP Projects: See Memo 200115

 Hales Pass roof replacement completed, including gutters.

 Hales Pass trim and facia repaired/replaced as needed in coordination with roofers.

 Some rotted boards replaced (see Change Order).

 Hales Pass renovation design underway and under review.

 Public meeting tentatively set for Monday, 3/23, 7pm, to review design progress.

 Discussion of Memorials and Donations Policy to continue.

 City of Gig Harbor conducted planning meeting on Cushman Trail Phase V to refine route from
Borgen Blvd to PC Line.

 All computers have been upgraded to Windows 10

 Finalizing post-move IT and phone adjustments.

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org
www.penmetparks.org



5 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

Finance Report

 The State Auditors gave their final approval to our audit and it is now a published
document. Staff have been meeting to develop a standardized detailed contract for large park
rentals according to State Auditor recommendations.

 January and February financial statements are done, and revenues are $191,451 above
budget. The only January expense of concern is the final bill for the election brochure which
was budgeted in 2019 but arrived in 2020.

Human Resources

 The next staff training session is March 25 at 2:30pm. Key Bank will attend and talk to the staff
about available banking options and mortgages. The training will be on either “Respect in the
workplace” from Enduris or a review of PenMet staff benefits (the new 457 Program and Health
Savings Account Program – Pers 2 vs Pers 3 retirement – the new State Family and Medical
Leave Act.

PEG Grants in progress

 Tubby’s small dog area shelter (finalizing application)

 Narrows fencing (preparing application)

 McCormick trail map and signs (preparing application)

 Voyager PTA Playground (approved, in progress, presenting for reimbursement soon)

 HFP Trail mapping and signage (preparing 2 applications)

 Two other scouts currently discussing projects

Volunteers

 Parks Appreciation Day April 25

 Working with community service people at Narrows continues.

 PHS runners trimmed trails at McCormick Forest; GHHS to trim trails at Rotary Bark Park.

 Considering National Trails Day event in June.

 Discussing GPC tree planting project at Sehmel Homestead Park.

Maintenance & Facilities

 Baseball Field Prep, cutting lip lines, Dragging Rosedale and Hales Pass setting bases ETC.

 Cut downed trees at Sehmel and McCormick

 Turf repair on football, soccer field at Sehmel

 Met with Astro Turf to see about fixing home plates on fields 1,2 and 3 at Sehmel

 Met with exterminator at Hales Pass for possible Termites. Some wood was replaced, and
maintenance will spray bleach water on one spot down in the basement to take care of some
moisture ants

 Moved some old light poles from the CRC to a neighbor of Hales Pass for milling to repair some
siding on Hales Pass Building



6 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

 Signed the maintenance crew up for pesticide training at WSU extension office April 15-16

 Met with Kelly Darling to plan for upcoming PenMet events

Recreation

 Kelly had a meeting with Chuck regarding the upcoming National Parks and Recreation Month
and what we will be doing for it.

 Kids Night out for March is March 21st with a Minute to Win It theme.

 Field turf usage and lighting is going well, and user groups are thankful for the
lights. Baseball/Softball fields are packed with spring sports.

 Basketball wrapped up March 7th, Spring Flag Football started March 7th and Baseball signups
are finishing up with a deadline of March 16th and currently over 200 kids registered.

Events

 Teen Trivia Night – Postponed

 Adaptive Egg Hunt – Postponed

 Teen Egg Hunt-– Postponed

 Scavenger Hunt Hike - Postponed

 Adult Egg Hunt - Postponed

 Spring Easter Egg Hunt & Tea with the Easter Bunny - Postponed

 Park Appreciation Day - April 25, 2020

March Staff Anniversaries

 Kelly Darling 2 Years

 Ed Lewis 4 years (Worked 1-yearas a seasonal worker in 2015)



7 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

Explanation Financial Statement Line Items 2020 February

#5111020 Legislative – Compensation & Benefits – Timing Issue $47.85

#5117051 Legislative – Elections – Election Brochure Invoice was delivered in January 2020 and

was budgeted in December 2019. $19,204.00

#5761035 Executive – Minor Equipment – Executive Chair $409.32

#5761044 Executive – Printing – Excess copier use over contract. $1,087.22

#5761046 Executive – Insurance – New Truck $488.00

#5893053 Executive – Leasehold / Excise Taxes – Amount is based on sales. $3,199.02 (Note

see rental revenue)

#5144049 Financial Services – Memberships – WFOA membership -$150.00

#5711011 Recreation – Compensation & Benefits – Retroactive Health Care Insurance $675.05



8 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



9 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



10 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



11 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



12 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



13 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

Proposals need to be in by April 3rd and then there will be a committee
meeting set up to review those proposals to get down to the short list.

Commissioner Kingsbury gave a summary of what happened in the
CRC Finance Committee meeting. The Board and staff discussed the
potential for bonds, doing the project in phases, bond rates, and a
timeline for the funding process for the new CRC. The Board
discussed the potential for non-voter approved and voter approved
bonds and PenMet’s bond ratings.

President Hill gave a summary of the CRC Fundraising Committee
meeting. Hill reported that the staff is going to draft an RFP to solicit a
fundraising consultant. Hill added that the draft will be reviewed by the
sub-committee and then have a discussion on the topic at the next
board meeting. The Board and Executive Director Nelson discussed
future discussion topics and different sources for offsetting costs for
the project budget.

ITEM 3 Adjournment Commissioner Hill adjourned the meeting at 7:03 pm

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: ________________

_____________________________ _____________________________

President Clerk

Submitted by Stacie Snuffin



14 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES: Tuesday, March 03, 2020, 7:00 pm
Gig Harbor Civic Center Council Chambers (3510 Grandview St., Gig Harbor, WA 98335)

Call to Order: The meeting of the Peninsula Metropolitan Park District was called to order
by President Hill at 7:05 pm

Commissioners Present: Staff:
Maryellen (Missy) Hill Doug Nelson
Amanda Babich Eric Guenther
Laurel Kingsbury Elaine Sorensen
Kurt Grimmer Stacie Snuffin

ITEM 1 Approval of Agenda

Commissioner Babich made the motion to approve the agenda, seconded by

Commissioner Grimmer. The agenda was approved with a 4-0 vote.

ITEM 2 Citizen Comments: None

ITEM 3 Presentations

3.a Executive Director’s Report

Executive Director Nelson offered to answer any questions the Board
had for him. The Board and Nelson discussed the Adaptive Recreation
program and how the program initially was developed. President Hill
and staff briefly discussed the GCCM review process. President Hill
discussed that the new Voyager Playground was approved and in the
process of presenting for reimbursement. Hill asked that PenMet
check into the access of the playgrounds to make sure they were
accessible during after school hours. Commissioner Grimmer reported
that he went by Hales Pass and that the new roof looked terrific. Eric
Guenther, Planning & Special Projects Manager, discussed that it was
not 100% completed but was close to being done. Commissioner
Babich asked for clarification as to what SAO (State Auditor Office)
stood for in the financial report. The Board and staff discussed the
GPC tree planting project, astro turf home plates and an exterminator
at Hales Pass looking for possible termites. Executive Director Nelson
Discussed some upcoming training programs that PenMet is looking
into for the staff. Eric Guenther gave an overview on the upcoming
Parks Appreciation Day. Nelson discussed PenMet observing National

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org

www.penmetparks.org



15 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

Trails day on our trails and possibly giving some tours to our
community.

3.b Financial Report

3.c President’s Report

President Hill thanked the staff for their participation in the PenMet
Staff Spotlight selection. Hill reported that she, Commissioner Babich
and Executive Director Nelson met with two neighbors about the
lighting and safety at Sehmel Park and that there will be another
neighborhood meeting to update them on the lighting project and their
safety concerns. President Hill also announced PenMet had their Audit
Exit interview which went well. Hill also reported we discussed the
sub-committees at the study session and that some of the
commissioners and PenMet Staff attended the Chamber of Commerce
Awards Gala last weekend where a couple of PenMet staff members
were nominated for two different awards.

ITEM 4 Consent Agenda

Commissioner Grimmer made the motion to approve the agenda, seconded

by Commissioner Kingsbury. The agenda was approved with a 4-0 vote.

4.a Approval of Meeting Minutes

2-18-20 Study Session and Regular minutes

4.b Approval of Vouchers

$92,361.72 Reference Number: V2020-081-099

ITEM 5 Unfinished Business: None

ITEM 6 New Business: None

ITEM 7 Comments by Board

Commissioner Babich checked in with staff regarding the Corona Virus and
what other agencies are doing in our area. Executive Doug Nelson reported
that PenMet has come up with a plan that was approved by PenMet’s
attorney and posted to the website. Board and Staff discussed what the plan
would be for staff if they need to stay home from work due to the illness and

office procedures for sanitizing in the office.

ITEM 8 Next Board Meetings: Tues. March 17, 2020 (Study and Regular) at City Hall
location

ITEM 9 Executive Session: Discussion on personnel matter. (RCW 42.30.110(g))

ITEM 10 Adjournment

Commissioner Hill adjourned the meeting at 7:50 pm



16 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON: ________________

_____________________________ _____________________________

President Clerk

Submitted by: Stacie Snuffin



17 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



18 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



19 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



20 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



21 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



22 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



23 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



24 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0



25 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

Peninsula Metropolitan Park District
PO Box 425 – Gig Harbor, WA 98335
253-858-3400 – info@penmetparks.org
www.penmetparks.org

DISTRICT COMMISSION MEMO

To: District Commissioners

From: Doug Nelson, Executive Director

Date: March 12, 2020

Subject: Rezoning: CRC 2416 14th Ave. NW, Gig Harbor WA 98335

Plus Rotary Bark Park 10100 Bujacich Rd NW, Gig Harbor WA 98335

Plus, McKee Property 8008 Olympic View Dr NW, Gig Harbor WA 98335

*A review of additional PenMet properties will be conducted and may be added.

Background/Analysis

In 2011, the PenMet Park District rezoned all suitable properties to Park and Recreation. To

maintain consistency throughout the Park District and best meet future needs, the Community

Recreation Center (CRC) site, and the Rotary Bark Park, and the McKee property location would be

next to rezone.

Rezoning these three properties to Park and Recreation will help streamline our upcoming

permitting needs and provide functional options for the District’s long-term considerations

*A review of additional PenMet properties will be conducted and may be added.

Timeline

The next steps related to the rezoning include:

 2020 – Pierce County Comprehensive Plan Amendments Year. (This only happens
every other year)

 4/1/20 – Paperwork available for application.
 7/31/20 – Rezoning application due. ($500. Non-refundable fee w/application)
 9/15/20 – County Council initiates the Amendment. ($2500. fee is due)
 2/2021 – County staff takes it to the Planning Commission in mid-February.
 4/2021 – County Council adopts amendments in late April.

Recommendation

Staff requests that the Board of Commissioners make a Motion to authorize staff to move

forward with the rezoning process.

Motion
I move to authorize staff to move forward with the rezoning process.



26 | P a g e R e g u l a r M e e t i n g A g e n d a 3 - 1 7 - 2 0

Should you have any questions or comments please contact me at the earliest opportunity

should additional research be required to provide answers at the meeting: 253-858-3408 or via

e-mail at Dnelson@PenMetParks.org.


